STATE OF CALIFORNIA EDMUND G. BROWN JR., Governor

PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION

505 VAN NESS AVENUE
SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94102-3298

October 20, 2017 GI-2017-02-PGE15-02A, 02B, 02C

Mr. Sumeet Singh, Vice President

Pacific Gas and Electric Company

Portfolio Management & Engineering

6111 Bollinger Canyon Road, Office #4590-D
San Ramon, CA 94583

SUBJECT: SED’s closure letter for the General Order 112 Inspection of PG&E’s Fresno
Division

Dear Mr. Singh:

The Safety and Enforcement Division (SED) of the California Public Utilities Commission
reviewed Pacific Gas and Electric Company’s (PG&E) response letter dated May 18, 2017 for
the findings identified during the General Order (GO) 112" inspection of PG&E’s Fresno
Division (Division) from February 27 through March 3, 2017.

A Summary of the inspection findings documented by SED, PG&E’s response to SED
findings, and SED’s evaluation of PG&E’s response to each item is attached to this closure
letter.

This letter serves as the official closure of the 2017 GO 112 Inspection of PG&E’s Fresno
Division facilities and any matters that are being recommended for enforcement will be
processed through the Commission’s Citation Program or formal proceeding.

If you have any questions, please contact James Zhang at (415) 603-1310 or by email at
james.zhang@cpuc.ca.gov

Dennis Lee, P.E.

Program and Project Supervisor
Gas Safety and Reliability Branch
Safety and Enforcement Division

Enclosure: Summary of Inspection Findings

cC: Mike Bradley, PG& E Regulatory Compliance
Susie Richmond, PG& E Regulatory Compliance
Dennis Lee, SED/GSRB
Terence Eng, SED/GSRB

! General Order 112-F was adopted by the Commission on June 25, 2015 via Decision 15-06-044.



SUMMARY OF INSPECTION FINDINGS

A. PG&E’s Internal Audit Findings

Prior to the start of the inspection, PG& E provided SED its findings from the internal review
it conducted of the Division. Some of PG&E’s internal review findings are violations of
PG&E’s operations and maintenance standards, and are therefore violations of Title 49 Code
of Federal Regulations (CFR), 8192.13(c). Table 1 lists PG&E’s internal findings.

Table 1: Fresno Division Internal Review Findings

Topic Code Finding Instances | Completion
Section Date

Not Following Company
Procedures. Information on
data sheet and operating

192.605(a) | diagram mismatch for 8 2/24/2017
regulator station: HPR K04 A,
2016 Regulator B & C; J-17; A-05; K--20;
Stations K11, K-21; B-03; K25

Not Following Company
Procedures. Monitor set point
192.201 set above acceptable limit at 1 Pending
K-25 Kettleman City Town
Station

Not Following Company
Procedures. Repair issue noted
in 2011. Notification closed in
2016 Valves 192.13(c) | 2013 and was never recreated. 1 2/22/2017
Issue still existed in 2016 and
noted in repair remarks for
VaveV-1A15-1RU-1

Incorrect weld procedure used
viaAs-Built for V-286. WPS

Welding 192.225 used was 222Sc-G Rev 2, 12 8/5/2016
whereas the 122Sc-G Rev 2
WPS should have been used

SED is aware that PG&E corrected some of its findings prior to SED’s audit. Please provide
SED an update on the items that were still pending corrective actions.

PG&E’s Response:

Per the attached summary of PG&E’s Fresno Internal Review, there was 1 finding that was
awaiting resolution. Please see below for status of the finding:

A temporary pressure set point reduction was completed on 2/9/17 and a project has been
created to uprate the MAOP to 25 psig by the end of 3" quarter of 2017.



SED’s Conclusion:

SED has opted not to impose afine or penalty at this time since PG& E has created the
necessary corrective plans and the violations did not result in a hazardous condition to PG& E
employees and the public. SED may opt to review all the corrective action records and
conduct field verifications of the remediation if necessary.



B. Probable Violations

1. Title49 CFR §192.225 Welding Procedures states in part:

“(a) Welding must be performed by a qualified welder or welding operator in accordance

with welding procedures qualified under section 5, section 12, Appendix A or Appendix B of

APl Sd 1104 (incor porated by reference, see §192.7), or section 1X of the ASVIE Boiler and

Pressure Vessel Code (ASME BPVC) (incorporated by reference, see 8192.7) to produce
wel ds meeting the requirements of this subpart. The quality of the test welds used to qualify
welding procedures must be determined by destructive testing in accordance with the
applicable welding standard(s).”

SED reviewed records for Valve Project V-286 on Line 1209-05 in Fresno, CA noted in PG&E’s
internal review findings. Construction documentation indicated that 12 welds (see Table 2) were

produced with Grade B? base material using Welding Procedure Specification (WPS) 222S¢-G

Rev. 2. The WPS was qualified in accordance with the requirements of the Twentieth Edition of
API 1104 for abase material with specified minimum yield strength (SMY S) greater than 42,000

psi but less than 65,000 psi.

Table 2: Weld No. and Component Specifications

Weld No.? Pipe Diameter, Wall Thickness and Grade Welding
Procedure
Specification
Number (WPS)
W-17 8.625” 0.322 WT GR-B | 8” 0.322 WT GR-B ELBOW 2225:-G Rev. 2
W-18 8.625” 0.322 WT GR-B | 8.625” 0.322 WT GR-B TEE 2225:-G Rev. 2
W-79 8.625” 0.322 WT GR-B | 8.625” 0.322 WT GR-B TEE 2225:-G Rev. 2
W-86 8.625” 0.322 WT GR-B | 8.625” 0.322 WT GR-B 2225:-G Rev. 2
W-87 8.625” 0.322 WT GR-B | 8” 0.322 WT GR-B ELBOW 2225:-G Rev. 2
W-88 8.625” 0.322 WT GR-B | 8” 0.322WT GR-B ELBOW 2225:-G Rev. 2
W-89 8.625” 0.322 WT GR-B | 8” 0.322WT GR-B ELBOW 2225:-G Rev. 2
W-90 8.625” 0.322 WT GR-B | 8” 0.322 WT GR-B ELBOW 2225:-G Rev. 2
W-91 8.625” 0.322 WT GR-B | 87 0.322 WT GR-B REDUCER | 2225.-G Rev. 2
T1-70 8.625” 0.316 WT GR-B | 8”7 0.322 WT GR-B CAP 2225:-G Rev. 2

2 PG&E Utility Procedure: TD-4160P-51 Rev. 0 indicates a specified minimum yield strength of 35,000 psi for

Grade B pipe.

3 A “W” prefix code denotes a production weld. A “T1” prefix code indicates a tie-in weld.
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T1-104 8.625” 0.322 WT GR-B | 8.625” 0.322 WT GR-B 2225c-G Rev. 2

T1-105 8.625” 0.322 WT GR-B | 8.625” 0.322 WT GR-B 2225c-G Rev. 2

PG&E isinviolation of Title 49 CFR §192.225 (a) because it produced the welds indicated in
Table 2 using WPS 222S:-G Rev. 2 which is not qualified for welding Grade B material.

PG&E’s Response:

PG& E recognize this finding and has taken the following corrective actions:

PG&E reviewed the weld records and determined that the welds are not a safety concern. The
destructive testing results recorded in the Procedure Qualification Records (PQR) for these WPS
were reviewed. The two welds were tested on California Steel (CSI) 127 0.375” pipe that only
differed in grade (the 222 used X60 and the 122 used X42). When the tensile test results for both
PQR’s are compared, they both broke the 70 ksi range, making them both compatible for
welding the API grade grouping 1 (used for X42 pipe or below). The 222Sc-G procedure tested
out stronger than expected for an X60 tensile test, compared to an X42 tensile test. Since they
used the same filler metals (the only difference being the electrode diameters), as expected the
metallurgical test results were very similar. The conclusion of thisisthat the 222Sc-G POQR
meets all of the destructive testing requirements for the 122Sc-G PQR, with the exception of
base material used in the testing, but if we switched out the base materia's (which was done on
thisjob), our destructive testing data proves the welds would meet all the code requirements and
design strengths needed for safe pipeline operation.

A 5 minute meeting was distributed on March 10, 2017 to reinforce the requirement to adhereto
weld procedure specifications.

SED’s Conclusion:

SED has reviewed PG&E’s response and opted not to impose a fine or penalty at this time since
PG&E has created the necessary corrective actions and the violation did not result in a hazardous
condition to PG& E employee and the public. SED may opt to review all the corrective action
records and check the implementation of the corrective actions at afuture date.

2. Title49 CFR 8192.241 Inspection and test of welds states in part:

*“(a) Visual inspection of welding must be conducted by an individual qualified by
appropriate training and experience to ensure that:

(1) The welding is performed in accordance with the welding procedure; and

(2) The weld is acceptable under paragraph (c) of this section.”

PG&E isinviolation of Title 49 CFR 8§192.241 (a)(1) because PG& E failed to ensure that the
welding was performed in accordance with the correct welding procedure when it performed the
visua inspections for the welds listed in Table 2.



PG&E’s Response:

PG& E recognizes this finding and has taken the following corrective actions:

As noted during the audit, the incorrect welding procedure was used to perform visual
inspections for the welds listed in Table 2 in the SED’s letter.

Asnoted in thefirst probable violation, the destructive testing results recorded in the Procedure
Qualification Records (PQR) for these WPS were reviewed and the welds listed in Table 2 were
found to be safe.

A 5 minute meeting was distributed in March 2017 on the adherence to weld procedure
specifications.

SED’s Conclusion:

SED has reviewed PG&E’s response and opted not to impose afine or penalty at thistime since
PG&E has created the necessary corrective action plans and the violations did not result in a
hazardous condition to PG& E employee and the public. SED may check the implementation of
the corrective actions at a future date.

C. Areas of Concern and Recommendations

None



